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ACRONYM DESCRIPTION 

APP Adaptive Planning Process or Annual Performance Plan 

AMD Acid Mine Drainage 
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SP Strategic Plan 

COGTA Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs 

CL Compulsory Licensing 

CM Compliance monitoring 

CMA Catchment Management Agency 

CME Compliance Monitoring and Enforcement 

CMS Catchment Management Strategy 

CROCOC Crocodile River Operations Committee 

DSS Decision Support System 

DNA National Department of Water Affairs in Mozambique 

DME National Department of Minerals an Energy 

DMS Decision Making System 

DORA Division of Revenue Act 

DPSA Department of Public Service and Administration 

DWA Department of Water Affairs 

EE Employment Equity 

EEA Employment Equity Act 

EEP Employment Equity Plan 

EIA Environmental Impact Assessment 

EMPR Environmental Management Programme Report 

ER Ecological Reserve 

EWR Environmental Water Requirement 

GB Governing Board 

GIS Geographical Information Systems 

HDl's Historically Disadvantaged Individuals 

HYCOS Hydrological Cycle Observing System 

HYDSTRA Surface Hydrology Information System 

Implementation Activity and Action Plan 
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IAP's Invasive Alien Plants 

ICMA lnkomati Catchment Management Agency 

IGR Inter-Governmental Relations 

IDPs Integrated Development Plans 

IFR In-Stream Flow Requirement 

IIF lnkomati Irrigation Forum 

IIMA Interim Inca-Maputo Agreement 

ISOTG lnkomati Systems Operations Task Group 

IS Information Systems 

IT Information Technology 

IWAAS lnkomati Water Availability Assessment Study 

IWMA lnkomati Water Management Area 

IWRM Integrated Water Resources Management 

KJOF Komati Joint Operations Forum 

KNP Kruger National Park 

KOBWA Komati Basin Water Authority 

LM Local Municipality 

MAR Mean Annual Runoff 

MCCAW Mpumalanga Coordinating Committee on Water Use 

MOALA Mpumalanga Department of Agriculture and Land Administration 

MOA Memorandum of Agreement 

MSF Mpumalanga Spatial Framework 

MTEF Medium Term Expenditure Framework 

MTPA Mpumalanga Tourism and Parks Agency 

MTSF Medium Term Strategic Framework 

MWF Mpumalanga Wetland Forum 

NFEPA National Freshwater Ecosystems Priority Areas 

NGO Non Governmental Organization 

NWA National Water Act, Act 36 of 1998 

NWRI National Water Resources Infrastructure 

National Water Resources Infrastructure Agency 
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PMDS 
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ROR 
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RQO 

RWQOs 

SADC 

SAM 

SANBI 

SANCIAHS 

SANCOLD 

SANPARKS 

SASRI 

SCM 

SDC 

SDP 

SG 

SLA 

National Water Resources Strategy 

Occupational Health and Safety 

Operational Plan 

Operating Rules 

Occupation Specific Dispensation 

Performance Agreements 

Project Coordinating Committee 

Public Finance Management Act 

Provincial Growth and Development Strategies 

Performance Management and Development System 

Progressive Realisation of the Inca-Maputo Agreement 

Professional Service Provider 

Resource direct Measures 

River Health Programme 

River Operating Rules 

Resource Poor Farmers 

Resource Quality Objectives 

Resource Water Quality Objectives 

Southern African Development Community 

Strategic Adaptive Management 

South African National Biodiversity Institute 

South African National Committee on Implementing Applied Hydrological 

Sciences 

South African National Convention on Large Dams 

South African National Parks 

South African Sugar Research Institute 

Supply Chain Management 

Source Directed Controls 

Spatial Development Plans 
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Service Level Agreement 

Small Medium Micro Enterprises 
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ACRONYM DESCRIPTION 

SP Strategic Plan 

STEEP Social, Technological, Ecological, Economic, Political 

TOR Terms of Reference 

TPTC Tri-Partite Permanent Technical Committee 

VSTEEP Values, Social, Technological, Ecological, Economic, Political 

WAP Water Allocation Plan 

WARMS Water Authorisation and Registration Management System 

WAR Water Allocation Reform 

WC/DM Water Conservation /Demand Management 

WDCS Waste Discharge Charge System 

WISA Water Institute of South Africa 

WMA Water Management Area 

WMI Water Management Institution 

WRC Water Research Commission 

WRM Water Resource Management 

WReMP Water Resources Management Platform 

WRIM Water Resources Information Management 

WSDP Water Services Development Plan 

WUA Water Users Association 

WWTW Waste Water Treatment Works 



Chairperson's 
Sfd� 
Introduction 

It is with great pleasure and enthusiasm that this annual report for 2014/15 

is submitted. It was a year of strategic change in succession of the 2013/14 financial 
year with the theme of additional momentum. 

Strategic Change 

Following the completion of the Institutional Realignment by the Department of Water and Sanitation (DWS) and the 
approval of the second National Water Resource Management Strategy in 2014, the nineteen water management areas 
were reduced to nine. The establishment of the nine Catchment Management Agencies ( CMAs) as approved in March 
2012 for the identified water management areas is in sync with the revised National Water Resource Management 
Strategy. 

On 2 May 2014 the lnkomati-Usuthu Catchment Agency (I UCMA) was proclaimed under Government Notice No. 330 in 
Government Gazette No. 37602. In terms of this Government Notice the boundaries of the lnkomati Catchment Agency 
(ICMA) was extended and its name was changed to be lnkomati-Usuthu Catchment Management Agency. The 
boundaries of the lnkomati water management area was extended by merging it with the Usuthu Catchment that was 
part of the dissolved Mhlatusi-Usuthu Water Management Area. 

The Governing Board members of the IUCMA were appointed as the interim members of the IUCMA Governing Board 
prior to the publication of the Government Notice for the IUCMA. In June 2014 the members of the IUCMA Governing 
Board received their letters of appointment and the last meeting of the ICMA Governing Board was held on 07 July 2014 

followed by the Inaugural Meeting of the IUCMA Governing Board on 08 July 2014 that also served as an induction 
session for the new Governing Board members. 

Where the appointment of the previous Governing Board was based on sector representation, the appointment of the 
Governing Board of the IUCMAwas based on skills and expertise. 

On 15 January 2015, the Minister of Water and Sanitation delegated responsible authority powers and functions to the 
IUCMA. On request, a new Strategic Plan for 2015/16 to 2020/21 was approved by the Governing Board in June 2015 and 
submitted to the Minister. 

International Relations 

The I UCMA has a water management area sharing water resources with our neighbours, Mozambique and Swaziland 
within the lncomati basin. We are involved in transboundary water resource management. We have twinning 
arrangements with our colleagues in the Netherlands. We are involved in a River and Environmental Management 
Cooperation (REM CO). In Southern Africa we have the REM CO Committee comprising of representatives from IUCMA 
in South Africa, ARA-Sul in Mozambique and the Komati River Basin Authority in Swaziland. This is also operated in 
cooperation with the Vecht River transboundary initiative between Holland and Germany and bi-annually a 
transboundary water resource management conference is held alternatively in either Holland or Germany and in 



Southern Africa in South Africa, Mozambique or Swaziland. The IUCMA 
hosted the last transboundary water resource management 
conference under the REM CO umbrella in Mbombela (Nelspruit) at the 
end of September 2014. It was well attended and a water quality 
workshop for municipalities to improve the quality of waste water from 
them returned to the rivers emanated from this conference. 

Planning 

As indicated above the I UCMA managed to adjust its planning 
documents within a very short space of time to accommodate the 

strategic changes that it faced at a short notice. The IUCMA is able to apply the principles of strategic adaptive 
management (SAM) within its operations to adapt all the time to the changing needs of its stakeholders. The first 
stakeholder meeting within the Usuthu catchment in respect of the Annual Performance Plan for 2015/16 took place in 
214/15 financial year, that included the consultation on the setting of water use charges. 

Gratitude 

I wish to take this opportunity to sincerely express my gratitude to the Minister of Water and Sanitation (DWS) and my 
colleagues on the I UCMA governing board for the enduring guidance and support; the I UCMA employees for sterling 
job done; all our stakeholders; research institutions and practitioners as well as the regional and international water 
resources management partners for their various contributions. Our achievements during 2014/15 financial year are 
attributed to your respective massive contributions. 

Since inception, the IUCMA's strategic framework has consistently placed strong emphasis on organizational capacity 
building to enhance service delivery in accordance with the mandate as envisaged in the National Water Act 36 of 1998. 
It is in keeping with this commitment that ' Maintaining Momentum' was the theme associated with the annual report 
for the 2012/13 financial year. This trajectory was carried into the 2013/14 financial year- the current annual report which 
is themed 'Limitless Momentum'. 

On behalf of the governing board, I wish to express our profound appreciation to management for having recorded yet 
another unqualified audit opinion. It is a source of inspiration to all of us. 

Our stakeholders and their participation in our activities in the catchments under our jurisdiction is close to the core of 
our mandate. We have, during the year, engaged with them vigorously to ensure that the necessary capacity and 
awareness on various water resources management are extended throughout the lnkomati water management area. 
One of the programmes that saw our stakeholders participating effectively was the Water Week awareness campaign 
where stakeholders from our Catchment Forums sponsored the whole exercise. 

On 20 February 2015 the Governing Board adopted its implementation plan for the delegations received and it included 
some identified additional powers and functions of a responsible authority, such as the conditions attached to a water 
use licence to be delegated and the written authority by the Minister to the IUCMA to sub-delegate powers and 
functions delegated to it. This will assist to make the implementation of the received delegations to be administratively 
more practical and quicker for decision making by a committee of the Governing Board or the executive administration 
instead of by the full Governing Board with the final decision on water use licence applications. 

I can confidently say that the I UCMA is competent and ready for the delegations as well as challenges in integrated 
water resource management. 



In closing, I would like to reiterate that it is indeed inspirational for all of 

us in the I UCMA to devote our energy towards serving your interests in 

the best way possible and we look forward to your continued support 

and contribution in all our endeavours in 2014{15 financial year and 

beyond. 
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Ms TP NYAKANE-MALUKA 

CHAIRPERSON: GOVERNING BOARD 
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Under th tinued theme limitless moment s incorporated 
annual report comprises both the financial and non-financial 
performance for the financial year 1 st April 2014 to 31st March 2015. 

Progress, innovations, successes as well as challenges were 
experienced. Due to commitment and positive teamwork from our 

governing board, employees as well as stakeholders, we were able to turn challenges to lessons that will play a positive 
role in the progress of the institution from here forth. 

The theme limitless momentum is a continuation from previous financial year reports. As the entity grows and new 
people come in, additional functions delegated and another catchment area added, higher and bigger momentum is 
being generated, which explains the current I UCMA operational positions as shown below: 
• The receipt of delegation of powers and functions by the minister has been matched with the progressive
development of corresponding capacity in terms of personnel to enable effective implementation;
• Additional capacity came as a result of filling of critical positions created by amalgamation of Usuthu;
• The access to the information systems of DWS, e.g. WARMS has been completed and significant progress h a s 
been made with regards to the transfer of files.

Building partnerships for sustainable IWRM 

It is a pleasure to report that over the years, the IUCMA has remained steadfast in its commitment to generate value for 
all stakeholders. The IUCMA subscribes to a vision that sees water resources as an integral component of the 
ecosystem, a natural resource and a social and economic good. 

Hence, in delivering on its mandate, the I UCMA strives to work in collaboration with strategic partners and stakeholders 
to promote and strengthen cooperation across all levels and sectors to ensure sustainable Integrated Water Resources 
Management (IWRM). As per the Annual Performance Plan, IUCMA was able to participate in the Trans-boundary water 
management forum meetings, international programmes beneficial to IUCMA, IWRM related projects, forums and 
conferences. 

It should be emphasised that the I UCMA successfully organized an international River and Environmental Management 
Cooperation (REM CO) conference in Mbombela during the year under review. The attendance and participation by our 
regional partners, Mozambique and Swaziland as well as our twinning partners from Netherlands and Germany was 
impressive. We extend our appreciation for their support. Danke! 

Capacity building and our stakeholder interactions have greatly improved. The IUCMA has added many more 
stakeholders to the existing stakeholder database. It is encouraging to report that the relationship between the I UCMA 
and her stakeholders is such that stakeholders continue to sponsor some educational/awareness campaigns. We salute 
our stakeholders for their continued support. 



Accomplishing reporting requirements 

The incorporation of the Usuthu Catchment to form the IUCMA was 
successfully completed during the course of the financial year under 
review. Even though there were some financial hiccups which affected 
the performance of the organisation in different ways, the IUCMA 
managed to achieve most of her targets. The amendment of existing 
plans, e.g. 2014/15 Annual Performance Plan (APP) to incorporate the 
changes that came with the addition of the Usuthu Catchment and the 
new delegations were achieved within the stipulated time frames. 

The said amendments to the 2014/15 APP also included the budget needed to perform those functions. It is against this 
amended APP that the performance detailed in this Annual Report has been audited. 

Management of risks 

Concerned with optimising operational efficiency, the I UCMA manages risks in a manner that increases the probability 
of achieving success in the organisation's overall objectives. Over the cause of the financial year under review, the risk 
committee members were capacitated by attending risk management courses. Risk management workshop was 
organized for all managers and supervisors and they contributed to the new updated risk register. Updated risk 
management framework has also been developed to cover areas like; 

• the determination of the IUCMA risk appetite;
• the control methods in terms of management responsibilities for risk management;
• the process used to identify risks and how they are addressed; and
• the control systems in place to manage risks.

Quarterly updated risk registers were submitted to the Audit Committee and subsequently the governing board, 
addressing areas of importance as listed above. 

Water Quality 

The problems affecting water quality in the lnkomati-Usuthu WMA are largely attributed to industrial and mining 
activities as well as poor state of water service authorities' waste water treatment infrastructure. The common cases 
during the financial year under review include; 

• raw water ( water resources) contamination by sewage; and
• leakage of mining effluents into the water resources.

Enforcement measures were taken to mitigate the pollution incidents. Positive outcomes were realized from the 
actions. 

Water Allocation Plan 

The Water Allocation Plan has not commenced since it is fully dependent on the completion of the validation and 
verification of water use in the I UCMA Water Management Area. The I UCMA has successfully completed the validation 
of the lnkomati Catchments. The verification of water users in the lnkomati Catchments has started. The validation and 
verification of water uses in the Usuthu will start in the 2016/17 financial year. 



Amalgamation of Usuthu 

Transforming Irrigation Boards and establishment of WU As 

The issue of the Irrigation Boards and Water User Associations (WU As) 
was put on hold pending the outcome of the Policy Review of the 
National Water Act. The Policy Review of the NWA will give directions on 
the future of Irrigation Boards and Water User Associations in IUCMA's 
Water Management Area. 

As we proceed to another promising, positive envisioned financial year, 
we envisage much support from our stakeholders in order for the 
Institution to successfully implement its functions and live up to its 
mission and vision. 

During the 2014/15 financial year the IUCMA proved to be competent and ready for the changed institutional and water 
management area arrangements. It managed to integrate the Usuthu Catchment into its APP and budget and started 
water resource management operations within this area, within a short period of time. 

Longstanding challenge 

The finalisation of long lasting water resource pollution cases with specific reference to municipalities polluting the 
water resources with raw sewage or poorly treated sewage is a big concern as the problem poses a serious health risk. 
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DrTK Gyedu-Ababio 

Acting Chief Executive Officer 



Legislati� 
Fr�h 

There have been no significant changes to the IUCMA's legislative 
mandate, but on 15 January 2015 the Minister of Water and Sanitation 
delegated Responsible Authority powers and functions in Chapter 4 of 
the NWA to the IUCMA together with the existing delegation of the 
powers and functions in Schedule 3 of the NWA. The mandate of the 
I UCMA is repeated here for your information. 

The IUCMA has the following initial functions in terms of Section Bo of the NWA: 

• Investigate and advise interested persons on water resource management
• Compilation of the CMS
• Co-ordinate related activities of water users and WM Is
• Promote co-ordination of implementation of any applicable water services development plan
• Promote community participation in water resource management

Section 8o(b) must be read with section 8 to 11 of the NWA. In terms of section 8 the IUCMA must by notice in the 
Gazette, establish a catchment management strategy for the protection, use, development, conservation, 
management and control of water resources within its water management area. A catchment management strategy or 
any component of that strategy may only be established with the written consent of the Minister. 

In addition to section 80 above, the IUCMA also has the following inherent functions: 

• Prevention and remedying effects of water resource pollution as stipulated in section 19 of the NWA
• Control of emergency incidents in respect of water resource pollution as stipulated in section 20 of the NWA.

On 15 January 2015 the Minister of Water and Sanitation delegated the powers and functions in the following provisions 
of the National Water Act to the lnkomati-Usuthu Catchment Management Agency: 

• Section 33-Declaration of water use as existing lawful water use;
• Section 34-Authority to continue with existing lawful water use, including request to register such use;
• Section 35 -Verification of existing water uses;
• Section 40 -Application for licence;
• Section 41-Procedure for licence applications;
• Section 42- Reasons for decisions;
• Section 44- Late applications;
• Section 51- Successors in title (Adjudication of conflict claims);
• Section 52-Procedure for earlier renewal or amendment of licences;
• Section 53-Rectification of contraventions;
• Section 54-Suspension or withdrawal of entitlements to use water;
• Section 55 -Surrender of licence;
• Section 57 -Application of pricing strategy ( Making and receiving of water use charges);
• Section 58 -Recovery of water use charges (Directive to water management institution);
• Section 66-Con donation of failure to comply with time period;



• Section 141 - Provision of information [Sub-par (a) and (b )];
• Section 145(2) - Establish early warning system in respect of

floods, droughts, water works, risk by a dam, levels of flood
water, risk posed by water quality and any matter connected to
water/water resources the public need to know.; and

• Schedule 3- Power to manage, monitor, conserve and protect water
resources and to implement catchment management strategies; To
make rules to regulate water use; To require establishment of
management systems; To require alterations to water works and To
temporarily control, limit, or prohibit use of water during periods of
water shortage;

To make the implementation and application of the delegations received practical and realistic the following related 
provisions should also be delegated to the IUCMA: 

• Section 28(3) to ( 6 )- Extension of licence period if done as part of general review of licences in terms of section 49.
• Section 29- Conditions for issue of (general authorisations) and licences ( Only in respect of licences)
• Section 30 -Security by applicant (if necessary for the protection of water resource or property)
• Section 49- Review and amendment of licences
• Section 50 - Formal amendment of licences

Other Original Functions 

In terms of section 25(1) of the National Water Act, the lnkomati-Usuthu Catchment Management Agency may as a 
water management institution on request authorise the temporary use of existing authorised irrigation water for a 
different use on the same property or for the same use or similar use on another property in the vicinity. 

The lnkomati-Usuthu Catchment Management Agency may as water management institution appoint in terms of 
section 124 Authorised Persons to perform inspection and remedy duties in respect of water resources in terms of 
section 125(1)- (3). 

In terms section 57( 2) of the NWA charges within a specific water management area may be made by and are payable to 
the relevant water management institution. In the case of the lnkomati-Usuthu WMA the IUCMA is the relevant water 
management institution. However, the I UCMA is not in a position to undertake this function until the linkage between 
the IUCMA's systems and the Water Authorisation and Registration Management System (WARMS) and billing 
software is in place to enable billing. 



IUCMA vision 

The IUCMA vision remains "Water for all in the lnkomati-Usuthu" 

IUCMAMission 

The mission of the IUCMA is of a pioneering catchment management 
system that empowers stakeholders to engage in consensual and 
adaptive decision making, to achieve reform, and to promote persistent 
social, economic and environmental justice across the lnkomati 
catchment. The IUCMA exists within the lnkomati WMA with a purpose 
to: 

• Manage the water resources according to the National Water Act. We will achieve this through the
development and implementation of a Catchment Management Strategy with all stakeholders, balancing the
utilisation, development and protection of the water resource.

• Manage all water uses to promote equity and efficiency. We will achieve this through appropriate authorisation,
pricing, control and enforcement of water use together with programmes to promote water conservation and
pollution control.

• Protect the water resources to support biodiversity and local use by communities. We will achieve this
through setting objectives through a consensus seeking process that balances the need to protect and sustain,
with the need to develop and use the water resource.

• Involve stakeholders in water resources decision making. We will achieve this through mobilising, empowering
and consulting water users and stakeholders, focussing on expanding participation by communities, women and
rural poor.

• Facilitate co-operation between water related institutions to promote political credibility within the
lnkomati WMA. We will achieve this through building strong relationships, advising, supporting and
monitoring the water related activities of private and public sector bodies.

• Contribute towards social and economic development in the Water Management Area. We will achieve
this through allocation of water and creative initiatives in support of government objectives and strategies.

• Support the co-operative management of the lnkomati basin as an internationally shared water course.
We will achieve this by supporting the Department of Water and Sanitation (DWS) to implement international
agreements



IUCMA Strategic Objectives 

Ensure Effective, Efficient and Sustainable Management of Water 

Resources 

• Develop/implement empowerment programmes that promote
strategic and consensual decision making across the stakeholder
base.

• Develop/implement systems and strategies ( e.g. the CMS and
river operating systems) that facilitate improved and equitable
access to the resource.

• Develop/implement cost effective monitoring programmes that serve strategic, adaptive and consensual decision
making.

• Ensure integrated planning and operation of systems
Ensure Collaborative and Co-ordinated IWRM for Wise Socio-Economic Development

• Grow multi-level, multi-sectoral (Private, NGO and Gov.) governance networks and engagement processes that
keep IUCMA agendas at the forefront, taking advantage of existing structures wherever they can achieve this
purpose.

• Structure the ICMA's advisory function, within resource constraints, to ensure ICMA needs are served alongside
those who are requesting advice.

• Support the development, and where appropriate transformation, of other WRM institutions (WUA, CMC, etc.).
• Develop and implement rules and procedures for operational river management.

Promote and Pursue an International Developmental Agenda
• Improve cross-boundary stakeholder relationships and understanding of current agreements.
• Strategically improve understanding of local catchment conditions and IWRM needs to inform decision-making

about international obligations under changing circumstances. (i.e. do not wait for a crisis or demand from a
neighbor).

• Exchange of knowledge and expertise.
Promote Knowledge Generation and Distribution

• Design and implement a system of data and meta-data management, pertinent to participative IWRM in the
lnkomati that is accessible to all stakeholders.

• Identify, collect and collate data/information for the system in 4(a) and map the stakeholder network,
including the distribution of STEEP competencies, activities, needs, decision making mandates, etc.

• Using outputs from a) and b), develop a strategic plan for knowledge acquisition that will guide future
partnerships with stakeholders, and with other knowledge/skills providers.

• Develop/implement strategic empowerment programmes that are explicit about the transfer and diffusion of
knowledge/skills across the stakeholder network.

Ensure Effective and Efficient Management of ICMA Resources 

• Explore and internalise the characteristics and processes of an enabling environment for pioneering IWRM in an
emerging African democracy.

• Ensure appropriate capacity is built within the IUCMA for participative IWRM.
• Co-ordinate and align the adaptive systems that serve objectives 1-4.
• Improve internal and external networking.
• Improve internal service infrastructure e.g. the computer network. Strategic Action Programmes emanating from

the Catchment Management Strategy



The former ICMA finalised the development of its draft first generation 
catchment management strategy in the 2010-11 financial year and 
approval was granted to gazette for public comment. The invitation for 
written comments was published in the Government Gazette of 7 
December 2012. Interested individuals and organisations were given 
until 15 April 2013 to submit their comments to the ICMA for integration 
into CMS. 

Thus, the five strategic objectives of the IUCMA which are summarised 
below emanate from the Government outcomes/ outputs and DWS 
Strategic outcome oriented goals: 

Ensure Effective, Efficient and sustainable Management of Water 

Resources 

Ensure Collaborative and Coordinated IWRM for Wise Socio 

Economic Development 

Promote and Pursue International Development Agenda 

Promote Knowledge Generation and Distribution 

Effective and efficient management of IUCMA Resources 

The organisational structure created to assist the Governing board to achieve the above objectives of the IUCMA is set 
below. 
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Perforntance 
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Good Corporate Governance 

There were no negative deviations from the governance expected 
performance that includes legal services, committee work for the 
Governing Board and its Committees, and advisory services regarding ensuring compliance with legislation and policies 
and also with risk management. 

The extension of the water management area of the former ICMA and its name change to lnkomat-Usuthu Catchment 
Management Agency (I UCMA) under Government Notice No. 330 took effect on 22 May 2014. The Usuthu Catchment of 
the former Mhlatuzi-Usuthu Catchment Management agency was merged with the former lnkomati Water 
Management Area. 

This resulted into the appointment of an Interim Governing Board that comprised of the Governing Board Members of 
the former lnkomati Catchment Management agency Governing Board Members with the same Chairperson Ms TP 
Nyakane-Maluka. The new Governing Board had its Inaugural Meeting and induction on 08 July 2014 and the members 
are the following: 

MEMBER SKILLS CONTACT DETAILS AND PLACE OF 

RESIDENCE 

Ms TP Nyakane-Maluka Corporate Governance Cell: 082 887 3407 
Chairperson Email: n}"akanetp@gmail.com 

Dwarsloop, Bushbuckridge, Mpumalanga 

Mr MS Mthembu Legal and Risk Cell: 082 854 6158 
Deputy Chairperson Email: sam.mthembu@vodamail.co.za 

White River, Mpumalanga 
Dr JB Molwantwa Corporate Governance Cell: 083 590 3013 

and Technical Email: jenniferm@wrc.org.za 
Kagiso, Gauteng 

Dr PE Molokwane Corporate Governance Cell: 083 345 2122 
and Technical Email: pullym@gmail.rnm 

Centurion, Gauteng 

Ms SD Wiggins Corporate Governance Cell: 082 441 8147 
and Technical Email: shivon@mvula.co.za 

Nelspruit, Mpumalanga 

Mr PA Tshabangu Agriculture Cell: 082 777 7164 
Email: abei@vodamail.rn.za 
Nelspruit, Mpumalanga 

Mr PJ Venter Water Resource Cell: 083 702 5855 
Management and Email: the-venters@telkomsa.net 
Technical Amsterdam, Mpumalanga 
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MEMBER SKILLS CONTACT DETAILS AND PLACE OF 

RESIDENCE 

Mr J Mathebula Human Resources Cell: 082 353 2726 
Email: jeremiam@vodamail.co.za 
Amsterdam, Mpumalanga 

Dr T Gyedu-Ababio Acting Chief Executive Cell: 082 908 7729 
Ex Officio Officer Email: thomasga@iucma.co.za 

lnkomati-Usuthu CMA 

On 15 January 2015 the Minister of Water and Sanitation delegated responsible authority powers and functions to the 

IUCMA. On 20 February 2015 the Governing Board resolved on the implementation of these delegations together with 

the compliance with the conditions for the delegations. Some shortcomings with the delegations were identified, such 

as the power to attach conditions to water use licences and the written consent by the M inister to sub-delegate powers 

and functions. This was communicated in writing to DWS for submission to the Minister to have the shortcomings 

removed to ensure smooth and effective implementation of the delegations by the IUCMA. 

The attendance of the meetings of the Governing Board and its Committees by Members is reflected in the tables 

below: 

ICMA GOVERNING BOARD 

Member GB GB GBW/S GBS/H AUDIT EXCO WACO RemCo TOTAL BENCH· 

ORD SPEC MARK 

BENCHMARK 0 0 1 1 1 1 

Ms TP Nyakane- N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1 N/A 1 2 2 

Maluka 

Mr CJH du Preez N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1 N/A 1 1 

Ms EG Mashele N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1 N/A 1 1 

Ms LS Masilela N/A N/A N/A N/A 1 N/A N/A N/A 1 1 

Mr BK Mokoena N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1 N/A 1 2 2 

Mr F Roux N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1 N/A 1 1 

Mr SEThwala N/A N/A N/A N/A A N/A N/A 1 1 2 

Mr TG Mokoena N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1 N/A 1 2 2 

Audit committee 

external members 

MrS Mthembu N/A N/A N/A N/A 1 N/A N/A N/A 1 1 

Mr NL Mathebula N/A N/A N/A N/A 1 N/A N/A N/A 1 1 

Mr M Secker N/A N/A N/A N/A 1 N/A N/A N/A 1 1 
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INTERIM IUCMA GOVERNING BOARD 

Member GB GB GBW/S GBS/H AUDIT EXCO WACO RemCo TOTAL BENCH· 

ORD SPEC MARK 

BENCHMARK 1 1 1 1 1 2 

Ms TP Nyakane- 1 1 N/A 1 N/A 2 5 5 

Maluka 

Mr CJH du Preez 1 L N/A N/A 1 1 3 4 

Ms EG Mashele 1 1 N/A N/A 1 N/A 3 3 

Ms LS Masilela 1 1 L 2 N/A N/A N/A 3 4 

Mr BK Mokoena 1 1 N/A 1 N/A 2 5 5 

Mr F Roux 1 1 N/A N/A 1 N/A 3 3 

Mr SEThwala 1 1 2 N/A N/A 2 6 6 

Mr TG Mokoena 1 1 1 N/A 1 N/A 2 5 5 

Audit committee 

external members 

Mr S Mthembu 1 N/A N/A 2 N/A N/A N/A 2 2 

Mr NL Mathebula N/A N/A N/A 2 N/A N/A N/A 2 2 

Mr M Secker N/A N/A N/A 2 N/A N/A N/A 2 2 

NEW IUCMA GOVERNING BOARD 

Member GB GB GB GBW/S GBS/H AUDIT GCSC WACO TOTAL BENCH-

INAUG ORD SPEC MARK 

BENCHMARK 1 3 1 1 2 3 3 3 

Ms TP Nyakane- 1 3 1 1 2 N/A 3 N/A 11 11 

Maluka 

Mr MS Mthembu 1 3 1 1 1 3 N/A N/A 10 11 

Dr JB Molwantwa 1 2 1 1 N/A N/A N/A 3 8 9 

Dr PE Molokwane 1 3 1 1 N/A N/A N/A 3 9 9 

Ms SD Wiggens 1 3 1 1 N/A N/A 3 N/A 9 9 

Mr PA Tshabangu 1 3 1 1 1 3 N/A N/A 10 10 

Mr PJVenter 1 3 1 1 2 N/A N/A 3 11 11 

Mr J Mathebula 1 3 L 1 1 N/A 3 N/A 9 10 

Dr TK Gyedu-Ababio 1 2 1 1 2 2 N/A N/A 9 11 

(Ex officio) 
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Member GB GB GB GBW/S GBS/H 

INAUG ORD SPEC 

Audit committee 

external members 

Mr M Secker N/A 3 N/A N/A 

Ms VS Maholovela N/A 1 1 N/A 

(Appointed Nov 2014) 

GLOSSARY: 

- Ordinary Governing Board Meeting

- Special Governing Board Meeting

- Governing Board Workshop

- Governing Board Stakeholders Meeting

- Audit Committee

- Executive Committee

GB ORD 

GB SPEC 

GBW/S 

GB S/H 

AUDIT 

EXCO 

GCSC 

WACO 

N/A 

- Governance and Corporate Services Committee

- Water Committee

- Not Applicable

L - Leave of Absence

AUDIT GCSC WACO 

3 N/A N/A 

1 N/A N/A 

NUMBER OF GOVERNING BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

ICMA 

GOVERNING BOARD MEETINGS 

None 

COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

Water Committee : 01

Executive Committee : 01

Audit Committee : 01

Remuneration Committee : 01

TOTAL :04 

TOTAL BENCH-

MARK 

6 6 

3 3 
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IUCMA 

INTERIM GOVERNING BOARD MEETINGS: 

Ordinary : 01 

Special : 01 

Workshop : 01 

TOTAL : 03 

INTERIM COMMITTEE MEETINGS: 

Special Audit Committee : 02 

Special Executive Committee : 01

Special Water Committee : 01

TOTAL :04 

AD-HOC COMMITTEE MEETINGS : 04 

GOVERNING BOARD MEETINGS: 

Inaugural : 01

Ordinary : 03 

Special : 01

Workshop : 01

Stakeholders : 02 
TOTAL : 08 

COMMITTEE MEETINGS: 

Audit Committee : 03 

Governance & Corporate Services Committee : 03 

Water Committee : 03 

TOTAL :09 

AD-HOC COMMITTEE MEETINGS : 03 



Office o e 

Eµcdwe,Q 

Due to the creation of the lnkomati-Usuthu Catchment Management 
Agency (IUCMA) on 02 May 2014 additional planning was required. An 
amended Annual Performance Plan for 2014/15 that includes the Usuthu 
catchment that was merged with the former lnkomati Water 

Management Area had to be approved by the Governing Board for submission to the Minister of Water and Sanitation. 
The delegation of the responsible authority powers and functions to the IUCMA on 15 January 2015 required an 
amended Annual performance Plan for 2015/16 that had to be submitted in February 2015 to the Minister which was 
approved by the Governing Board on 20 February 2015. 

Reporting Requirements 

The 2014/15 financial year witnessed no variance from the expected performance provided for in the applicable 
legislative frameworks as the following reporting requirements in relation to the executive authority were fulfilled: 

• Annual Performance Plan was submitted;
• 2013/14 Annual Report submitted to National Treasury, Auditor-General and Office of the Minister and subsequently

to parliament;
• The amended Annual Performance Plan for 2015/16 financial year was submitted and approved by DWA;
• A five-year strategic plan spanning from 2015/16-20/21 was also submitted to DWS and subsequently presented to the

portfolio committee in parliament;
• 2015/16 Annual Performance Plan was also submitted to DWS; and
• All four (4) quarter reports, on performance, revenue and expenditure and PFMA Compliance Checklist were

submitted to DWS every quarter.

MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS 

The Marketing and communications unit is an integral part of the Office of the CEO. In the year under review the IUCMA 
has, as planned, developed two lnkomati Flows newsletters. The newsletter is rich in content. It informs stakeholders 
of the happening within the IUCMA. A number of Reports/brochures have also been developed and circulated to 
stakeholders, all these reports are also available on the website of the IUCMA. 

Media (Print and Radio) has been utilized by the IUCMA to enhance public awareness of the IUCMA the stakeholders 
and the general public. The IUCMA has also vigorously made use of promotional material to strengthen its corporate 
image and awareness. It is important for the IUCMA to claim its space in the online world. The IUCMA has thus affiliated 
to a number of organizations that helps to strengthen its online presence. These are the likes of MatchDeck, 
Enviropaedia, and a number of local Media's on line advertising platforms. 



REMC02014 

The IUCMA hosted the 3rd REMCO International Conference from 28 
September to the 1st of October 2014. The conference was official 
opened by the MEC for Social Development Mrs Nomsa Mtsweni. It was 
attended by delegates from Mozambique, Swaziland, and Germany, 
the Netherlands, sector department and local water users who form 
part of our stakeholder group. The REMCO initiative is a collaborative 
framework between operational water management institutions in the 
three riparian countries of the lncomati River basin and seeks to 
enhance the already existing governance structure for the lncomati 
River which is the Tripartite PermanentTechnical Committee (TPTC). 
Member institutions are the IUCMA in South Africa, ARA Sul in Mozambique and the KRBA in Swaziland. 

AFFILIATIONS 

The IUCMA is a patron member of the Water management Institute of Southern Africa (WISA). Patron membership is 
the most prestigious form of membership offered by WISA and is renewable annually at the discretion of the Institute. 
WISA seeks to promote professional excellence in the water sector, through building expertise, sharing knowledge and 
improving quality of life. 

In addition, the I UCMA has recently affiliated to two international water management organisations namely; the 
International Water Management Association (IWA) and the International Network of Basin Organisation (IN BO). 

IWA has a holistic approach to water management, which includes water services, water resource management and 
innovations around these aspects. It runs a number of programmes, of which one of them is basin management, called 
"the basins of the future". Basins of the future seek to ensure Improved Water Quantity and Supply to and from Cities 
through Effective Basin Management. It looks at the interdependence between basins (water resources) and cities 
(water services) is of increasing importance, particularly in the context of water security and the water, food and 
energy nexus. The programme addresses institutional, financial, technological and capacity aspects to optimize water 
use across sectors and facilitates dialogue across disciplines and institutions. 

INBO, on the other hand, is made up of organisations whose common goal is to implement integrated basin water 
resource management. Its main objective is to promote integrated water resources management at the level of river 
basins, as an essential tool for sustainable development, by developing lasting relations between organizations 
interested in such a comprehensive management, and facilitates exchange of experiences and expertise among them. 



EXPOS 

The IUCMA has also participated in a number of expos. To give a brief 

highlight, the IUCMA participated in the EXPO for the WISA Biennial 

Conference 2014 that took place in Mbombela, it also participated in the 

TSB career EXPO as well as the Sustainable Water week EXPO that took 

place at the CSIR International Conversion Centre in Tshwane. It also 

participated in a number of other Local and annual expos that take 

place in the Water Management Area. 

TSB career Expo 

Community outreach by the IUCMA 



Water Resource 

�e::::! 
The I UCMA has in excess of 200 monitoring sites which are sampled on 

monthly basis to assist in decision making. Data gathered from this 

process is converted into information that shows water quality trends 

in various sub-catchments. For the first time since its establishment, the 

IUCMA produced an Annual Water Quality Status Report which was shared with a wide range of stakeholders enabling 

the institution to account properly to its stakeholders. The report showed not only the status of the water resource, but 

also profiled all wastewater treatment facilities in its jurisdiction. The discharge of wastewater from these facilities 
poses by far the highest risk to water quality, river health as well as the health of the communities. The report further 

listed notices and directives issued to deal with non-compliances and pollution of the water resources. 

To confirm the water quality status, the IUCMA also undertakes River Health Monitoring studies in collaboration with 

the Mpumalanga Tourism and Parks Agency, focusing on one catchment per annum. In the year under review the river 

health monitoring for the Komati Catchment was conducted. A report in this regard will become available in the 2015/16 

financial year. All areas of concern identified and flagged by this monitoring program are followed up to ensure that the 

impacts are ameliorated. 

Towards the end of the financial year, the IUCMA appointed staff to fill newly created positions emanating from the 

amalgamation of the former lnkomati Water Management Area with the Usuthu Catchment. This enabled the IUCMA 

to take over the water quality monitoring in the Usuthu catchment which had not been monitored for nearly a year. 

A number of criminal cases were also opened against some of the transgressors to enforce corrective action. These 

resulted in some of the transgressions being corrected. For example, a new pump was installed at the Twin City Pump 

Station and the TTC manhole refurbished and repaired as a result of the criminal cases opened. 

TIC Manhole {Before) TIC Manhole {After) 



All activities within the water management area were inspected at least 
once and numerous follow up inspections conducted to ensure that the 
reported or identified transgressions are remedied. These resulted in a 
total of two hundred inspections being conducted and a number of 
notices and directives issued where transgressions were identified. 

A technical task team was established during the year under review to 
pro-actively deal with pollution emanating from mining related 
activities. The purpose of the task team is to ensure that all potential 
sources of pollution emanating from mining related activities have 
measures in place to prevent such pollution from occurring to ensure 

that the quality of our water resources are protected at all times. The task team has made steady progress by compiling 
the terms of reference and adopting them, ensuring that the status, mandate, jurisdiction and responsibility of the task 
team will be directed by those terms of reference. 

Twin City pump Station (before) 

River Operations and Data Management 

Validation and Verification of Water Use 

Twin City Pump Station (After) 

The validation of Existing Water use in the former Inkomati Water Management Area was completed during the year 
under review. A sm resolution DEM, dam volume estimations, high resolution (2,5m pixel resolution) landcover 
classification for current (2011) land use, medium resolution (3am pixel resolution) land cover classification for forestry 
in 1972 and a revised methodology to determine volumetric water use for irrigated land using SAPWAT 3 have been 
developed and incorporated into a validation database and GIS mapbooks to improve the preliminary lawfulness 
determinations. All supporting information was also gathered from DWA regional. The supporting information for 
validation is thus the best data available anywhere in the country. 
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The validation project also determined the HDI status of water use by
volume as indicated below:

HDI % by Volume 

CATCHMENT 
Irrigation outside Irrigation inside 
Irrigation Districts Irrigation Districts 

X1 59.0% 63.8% 

X2 6.2% 31.0% 

X3 27.5% 21.6% 

WMA 36.0% 45.7% 

Stream Flow 
Reduction Activities 
(Forestry) 

17.3% 

17.3% 

38.9% 

23.9% 

This indicates that the status of transformation of water use is significantly better than expected.

The verification of existing lawful use within the former lnkomati water management area commenced in February 2015
and will be completed over a period of 18 months.

Systems for Integrated Planning and Operations of Rivers

Both the Crocodile and Sabie River operating Rules and related Decision Support systems (DSS) are fully operational
and being implemented through the river operations committee in an adaptive management ethos with decisions
based on consensus. 
Flow alert levels have been determined for all key river flow gauging stations and key contact people have been
updated.

800.00 

700.00 

600.00 

� 500.00 

400.00 

300.00 

200.00 

100.00 

0.00 
Ocl Nov Dec Jan 

Critically High 496.56 � 1312.40 
Very High 197.50 244.70 470.45 
Above Normal Tl..97 189.33 285-42 
Normal 2.5.32 67.58 73.31 
Below Normal 6.50 24.03 37.27 
Low 2.60 2.60 3.92 9.81 
Critically Low 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 

Komatipoort Alert Levels 

Feb Ma, Apr May June 
Ul0.Z6 2035.14 28890 131.24 71.61 
778.49 693.89 214.16 86.39 48.64 

304.14 272.55 137.33 57.52 33.85 
r-

92.56 87.77 58.34 25.17 16.92 

39.99 42.47 24.54 11.62 6.19 

5.33 7.03 4.88 2.60 2.60 
----t- --

2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 

104.53 
45.61 

25.05 16.12 
11.15 6.00 

4.51 3.60 
2..60 2.60 

2.00 2.00 

63.23 

�00 

3.60 
2.60 

I 2.00 

• CritlCally High 

a very High 

Above Normal 

Normal 

Below Normal 

Low 

• Critically Low 



INKOMATI-USUTHU Annual Report 2014/2015 

An example of the flow alert levels defined for each River Flow Gauging station during the year 

Two technical support contracts to ensure that the DSS continues to run smoothly into the future have been finalised. 
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Real Time User interface for the IUCMA DSS 

A Flood Forecasting and Warning System for the Crocodile River Catchment has commenced development through 
funding from the Danish Embassy. 
Knowledge Generation and Distribution 

This refers to the requirement to collect, manage, store, produce & disseminate data in an appropriate format. All 
IUCMA real time rainfall and river loggers are fully functional and reporting to the DSS. They are visited every month for 
manual readings and calibration. An equipment provision contract has been finalised and spare loggers and probes 
have been procured. 

The WARMS (Water Authorisation and Registration management System) Office has been set up and the link to the 
WARMS software hosted at DWS finalised. The WARMS Coordinator and a data capturer post have been finalised and 
the office is now functional. 
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IUCMA Technician taking a manual reading for calibration purposesat Neis River at Boschrand on the 2nd of 

September 2014. 

General Exchange of Knowledge and Expertise 

This speaks to the provision of informed advice to DWS on International Agreements and general advisory services. The 

Division Partakes in and provides expert guidance and advise to numerous projects, forums, conferences, networks 

and associations as part of our functions. 
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International Liaison 

The Komati Joint Operations Forum {KJOF) of KOBWA was actively supported during the year. The I UCMA presented a 
report on recommendations to improve the operating rules for the Komati system to KJOF and the forum agreed that 
the IUCMA will run our own model in conjunction with that of KOBWA for a period of one year to compare. 

The IUCMA also has a twinning relationship to share mutual knowledge with Waterschap Groot Salland in the 
Netherlands. Under this twinning, a programme of mutual learning in the use of remote sensing for operational river 
management is underway. 

This mutual learning has resulted in a Hydronet Water control Room Project that will develop an operational radar and 
satellite rainfall product with real time calibration against rainfall gauges; setup a satellite dish GEONetCast remote 
sensing data acquisition portal at the I UCMA, develop an operational governance dashboard and investigate the use of 
Remote Sensing data for a water auditing application. The purchase of remote sensing data has been approved by the 
governing board to support this project as well as the real time operations of the rivers in general through improved 
data. 

Operational radar and satellite rainfall product for use by the IUCMA 
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------

Draft Water Auditing Application in Development 

Knowledge Sharing Networks 

The IUCMA has played a leading role in knowledge-building and sharing, including: 

• 

• Attended WISA conference. Participated in RISKOMAN, HYDRONET and IUCMA/ WGS cooperation 

workshops and made presentations. Led the conference Technical tour to KWENA DAM. 

• Attended the REMCO conference and made a presentation on IT solutions for river operation in place as well as
strategic adaptive management

• Attended the Dutch VNG international local government capacity conference in the Netherlands. Our presentation

won 2nd prize.

Water Resource Planning and Coordination 

In the year under review we witnessed a completion of Water Meter Installation project, wherein 70 water meters were 

installed along the Middle Komati River, in addition numerous repairs of pump stations and pipeline routes were carried 

out. 

A preliminary investigation into the foundation conditions of a possible weir site just below the failed Sibange pump 

station was carried out a report was produced, and based on the findings of the report it was discovered that none of 

the three sites that were investigated had bed rock on both sides of the river section nor could the depth to the bed rock 

in the river tunnel be estimated. 



Institutional Participation 

Dam safety inspections of La Motte Dam and Lake Millstream Dam were 
conducted and evaluation reports for the Dam Safety Office were 
compiled. A project for the Drilling and Testing of Boreholes in the 
Nkomazi area was successfully completed. In addition, a project for the 
further drilling and testing of more monitoring boreholes in the 
Nkomazi area was commissioned. A new project, "the assessment of 
water availability in the Usuthu catchment" was also commissioned. 
Inspection of Department of Agriculture, Rural Development, Land and 
Environmental Affairs (DARDLEA) Dams with a safety risk: Casteel Dam, 
Orinoco Dam and Edinburgh Dam were conducted. 

Interaction with Water Management Institutions 

In terms of the restructuring process of water management institutions, the Department of Water and Sanitation 
(DWS) is developing a new model that will replace the Irrigation Boards and Water User Associations. The IUCMA 
through its l&P Division has interacted with these institutions to disseminate the developments towards a smooth 
transition of the water management institutions. The l&P Division continually facilitated the Catchment Management 
Forum meetings in the six sub-catchments which include the Crocodile, Sabie, Sand, Usuthu, Lower and Upper Komati. 
The l&P Division managed to involve all the seven local municipalities and the three district municipalities whose 
boundaries or parts of are within the lnkomati Usuthu water management area including the newly amalgamated 
Usuthu sub-catchment in the CMF meetings. 

Amongst other the key items presented and discussed in the six forum meetings are: 

• Water Quality within the rivers catchments.
• Water resource classification progress reports.
• Municipal WWTWs status
• Forum Charters.

Stakeholder Empowerment and Interactions 

Stakeholder empowerment workshops conducted with H Dis and Traditional Authorities 

The l&P conducted a number of empowerment workshops with various stakeholders including resource poor farmers, 
traditional leaders and other emerging farmers in the six sub-catchments. The purpose of these workshops was to 
create awareness regarding water resource protection, water conservation, illegal sand mining and introducing 
programmes offered by the Department of Water and Sanitation such as the Resource Poor Farmer Support 
programme that makes provision of rudimentary infrastructure such as water tanks and pumps. 



Number of stakeholder interactions/ involving other external 
stakeholders 

The l&P was also instrumental in the establishment of the Upper and 

Lower Olifants Catchment Management Forum where advice was 

provided on charter development and other matters related to public 

participation. The IUCMA l&P was also involved in a number of IGR 

environmental initiatives such as the Provincial Climate Change 

Strategy development. 

Facilitating IWRM knowledge sharing networks by participating in 
IWRM-related forums. 

The l&P division in partnership with municipalities and trans boundary institutions such as KOBWA and ARA-Sul had 

discussions around issues related to water quality and resource protection strategies. The l&P was also engaged in a 

number of river cleaning campaigns in preparation of the Adopt-a-River programme that will be rolled out in the 2015/16 

financial year. The l&P conducted a number of career guidance and exhibition sessions in all the six sub-catchments 

involving schools and Mining 

houses. 



Corporate 
t)erJiaJ 

During the year under review, the institution received the grant in time, 
but towards the last quarter the funds were received late, which 
resulted in a deferral of funds to the first quarter of the 2015/16 financial 
year. A new electronic records management system was implemented 
and was effective and efficient throughout the course of the year. We 
are proud as this is a positive indication, as the institution moves 

towards electronic paperless record keeping environment. In terms of Supply Chain Management, all procurements 
and appointments of service providers are within the given SCM legislation by the National Treasury and internal 
policies and they have been implemented effectively. As a result, the IUCMA has commenced a majority of the 
multiyear projects, such as Verification and Validation, outsourced internal audit services and laboratory testing 
contracts. The year under review has seen an increase in BBBEE expenditure in order to align ourselves with National 
goals and empowerment of Small Business Enterprises owned by those who were previously disenfranchised. In 
addition, there have been no instances of non-compliance; treasury cost containment instructions were adhered to and 
consultancy reduction plans have been effectively implemented and monitored. 

There has been some server upgrades; setting up of a few virtual servers to ensure optimized IT efficiency. In the 2014/15 
financial year, we strengthened IT governance by establishing an IT committee that will see to the governance and IT 
security issues. 

A risk management committee was functioning effectively throughout the year by monitoring the strategic and 
operational risks identified throughout the year. A strategic risk workshop was conducted as well as a fraud awareness 
workshop for staff. Sixteen (16) policies were reviewed and approved by the board. 

The institution developed and implemented strategies to attract, develop, engage, motivate and retain talent in the 
organisation to ensure that the organisation is the employer of choice. Performance management of employees 
through quarterly reviews was effective throughout the year with a motivated workforce to ensure that the vision and 
the strategic objectives of the institution is achieved. Employment Equity Plan continues to be monitored to ensure 
equity in line with the national government goals. Internal employees were also awarded bursaries to further their 
studies and broaden their knowledge base to help them derive new ways of doing things especially in a specialised 
sector such as Water Resource Management. This is also to support and encourage the development of the human 
resources to ensure sustainability and future development, thus improving service delivery. 

Quarterly labour forum meetings continued to be held to improve employee-employer relations, enhance workplace 
efficiency, for consultation and joint decision making on matters that affect the employees or the employer. A few key 
policies were reviewed including performance management and remuneration strategy to ensure sustainable good 
corporate governance. Workplace skills Plan (WSP) was submitted to the Energy and Water Sector Education and 
Training Authority. Training continued to take place in line with the performance development plans as mitigating 
measures to ensure a skilled workforce. 

One wellness day (life skills program) was facilitated to enhance productivity and performance to the benefit of both 
the employee and the employer. 



Almost all planned targets under corporate services have been 

achieved, bar the filling of the prioritised positions. 15 vacant and 

funded prioritised positions were filled. The shortfall in the 

performance has been impacted on by the moratorium placed on filling 

of positions due to financial constraints caused by the delayed transfers 

of funds. 

The organisational structure was also reviewed in line with the 

mandate, strategic plan and the new delegation from the Minister of 

Water and Sanitation received on the 15th January 2015. This resulted in 

the organisation evaluating all positions to ensure the correct grading 

of positions. 

The recruitment during the 2014/15 financial year and employment equity are reflected below. 

Recruitment from 1 April 2014 to March 2015 

Appointment 

No# Position date Division 

Chief Auxiliary Services 
1 Officer 01-May-14 WRP&W 

Planning and 
Performance 

2 Coordinator 01-Jun-14 CEO's office 

3 GIS Coordinator 01-May-14 RSO&DM 

Finance 
(Management 

4 Revenue Officer 08-Jul-14 Accountine:) 

5 WARMS Coordinator 28-Jul-14 RSO&DM 

6 HR Manager 01-Aug-14 HR 

7 Technician 01-Aug-14 RSO&DM 

8 Finance Manager 01-Aug-14 Finance 

Asset Management 

9 Officer 01-Nov-14 Finance 
Finance 
(Financial 

10 Accountant 01-Feb-15 Accounting) 

Specialist Supply Chain Supply Chain 
11 Management 01-Feb-15 Management 

Control Environmental 
12 Officer 01-Mar-15 WRP&W 

Chief Auxiliary Services 
13 Officer 01-Mar-15 WRP&W 

14 Community Officer 01-Mar-15 l&P 

15 Environmental Officer 01-Mar-15 WRP&W 



Employment Equity 

FOREIGN 
Occupational Level AM CM IM WM AF CF IF WF M FOREIGN F TOTAL 

Top Management 1 1 

Senior Management-
E Band 1 1 2 

Professionally 
qualified and 
experienced 
specialists & mid 
Management-D band 4 4 4 12 

Skilled technical & 
Academically 
qualified workers (Jnr 
management, 
supervisors, foreman 
& superintendents - C 
Band 17 1 15 1 1 35 

Semi-skilled & 
discretionary decision 
making-B Band 1 3 4 

Unskilled & defined 
decision making- A 
Band 

TOTAL 23 5 23 1 1 53 



CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL PERFORMANCE TABLES 

CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 

PROGRAM 1: GOVERNANCE 

Performance 
Indicator 

Baseline I Annual 
Tare:et 

Annual Reason for 
Performance I Variance 

Remedial 
Action 

IUCMA Strategic Objective 5: Ensure Effective and Efficient Management of I UCMA Resources 

Good corporate 
governance effectively 
implemented 

Number of governing I 38 
board and committee 
meetings 

19 31 In the 2nd quarter 13 I None 
meetings were held 
rather than th4 
planned. This was due 
to the promulgation 
of the IUCMA on 2 
May and the 
appointment of the 
new Governing Board 
together with the 
inauguration of the 
new members. An Ad 
Hoe Committee 
meeting was held for 
external members of 
the Audit Committee. 



PROGRAM 2: OFFICE OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

Performance Baseline Annual 
Indicator Tare:et 

Annual Reason for 
Performance I Variance 

Remedial 
Action 

IUCMA Strategic Objective 5: Ensure Effective and Efficient Management of I UCMA Resources 

Annual Strategic Plan 
Approval 

Legislative reporting 
requirements effectively 
complied with 

IUCMA activities 
effectively marketed 

Number of plans 
Approved 

Number of statutory 
reports submitted for 
compliance 

I 
Number of 
publications 
produced (lnkomati 
Flows) 

Number of 
brochures developed 

Number of projects 
advertised through 
effective utilization of 
National and Local 
Electronic and Print 
media 

4 Quarterly 
Performance 
Reports 

1 Annual 
Report 

I 2

2 

4 

4 Quarterly 
Performance Reports 

1 Annual Report 

12

3 

4 

Achieved 

Achieved 

I 2

4 

6 

None None 

None None 

I None I None

Due to the REMCO I None 
one more Brochure 
was developed. 

During the 4 th quarter, I None
a partnership was 
established with Rise 
FM for the water 
week project which 
also had an advert for 
the event. 

An International 
engagement advert 
was published as a 
result of a board 
resolution. 



OGRAM 3: OFFICE OF THE CHIEF OPERATIONS OFFICER 

Performance I Baseline Annual Reason for Remedial 
Indicator 

IUCMA Strategic Objective 1: Ensure Effective, Efficient and Sustainable Management of Water 

CMS Strategic Action Programme 1: Achieving Equity 

Water users effectively I Percentage of water I 100%
validated users validated 

Effective River Operating I Number of DSS for I 3 
systems ROR developed 

100% 

3 

Achieved. Project 
completed in 2nd 

Quarter. 

2. Sabie Sand and 
Crocodile DSS are 
developed

None I None 

Delays in validation 
I 

The Kaap River will be 
project and other completed in 2015. 
higher priorities to 
upgrade server 
software first took 
precedent. 



Performance Baseline Annual 

Indicator Target 

Percentage 0 Commence Water 
completion of the Allocation Plan (30% 
Water Allocation Plan complete of total 

project) 

Annual 

Performanc 

e 

0% 

Reason for 

Variance 

WAP delayed 18 
months by validation 
project, delays linked 
to surveyor general's 
loss of cadastral data. 

Remedial 

Action 

Manco held a planning 
session to renew 
project timelines in 4 

th 

quarter. The Water 
Allocation Reform 
program consists of 
various projects such 
as Usuthu Water 
Availability 
Assessment Study, 
lnkomati Verification, 
Usuthu Validation & 
Verification etc. 
culminating in a Water 
Allocation Plan 
scheduled for 2017. 
This will be included 
and reported on in 
future performance 
plans. Both The 
Usuthu Water 
Availability 
Assessment Study and 
lnkomati Verification 
project have already 
started in the 4 

th 

quarter. 



Performance Baseline Annual Annual Reason for Remedial 

Indicator Target Performance Variance Action 

upport Established Number of existing 2 36 36 None None 
Water Management 
sfnstitutions 

WM I's supported 

IUCMA Strategic Objective 1: Ensure Effective, Efficient and Sustainable Management of Water 

Resources 

CMS Strategic Action Programme 2: Water Availability and Flow Management 

Number of water I 3 
quality related 
authorizations 
processed 

Percentage of I 100% 

temporary transfers in 
terms of S 25 (1) of 
NWA processed 

Number of water I 60 
meters installed in 
priority catchments 

8 

100% 

10 

8 water use I None 
authorisations 
recommended and 1 
general authorisation 
confirmed 

100% of o applications I Demand Driven 
received 

o I The project was
completed in the
previous financial 
year. 

None 

None 

None 



Performance I Baseline I Annual Annual Reason for Remedial 
Indicator 

IUCMA Strategic Objective 1: Ensure Effective, Efficient and Sustainable Management of Water 
Resources 

CMS Stratet?ic Action Prot?ramme 3: Managing Water Quality 
Discharge and water 
resource quality 
effectively 
sampled/monitored 

Number of samples I 1968 
taken per annum to 
monitor water quality 

2268 2175 Some of the Usuthu catchment will 
monitoring sites in the be monitored monthly 
lnkomati WMA did not from the new financial 
have flow and year. 
therefore could not be 
sampled. 

During the 4 th quarter,

the water quality 
monitoring of Usuthu 
WMAonly 
commenced in 
February 2015 with 
the assistance of DWS 
office in KZN. 



Performance 

Indicator 

River health effectively River health status 
monitored report for the Komati 

catchments 

Water resource pollution I Percentage of
Prevention reported/identified 

pollution cidants 
attended to 

Baseline Annual 

Target 

1 1 

100% 100% 

Annual Reason for Remedial 

Performance Variance Action 

1 Eco-status report for None None 
the Komati River 
Catchment produced. 

100% of 25 reported I None I None 
incidents were 
responded to 

IUCMA Strategic Objective 1: Ensure Effective, Efficient and Sustainable Management of Water 

Resources 

CMS Strate ic Action Pro ramme 3: Mana in Water Quality 

Integrated water quality Phases completion of Development Development of The model WQSAM I None I None 
management Framework integrated water of co- system integrates water quality 

quality framework operation and understanding of and quantity, has been 
protocol for Integrated water installed at the IUCMA 
data quality & provides stakeholders 
transparency, management in the with requested output. 
confidentiality crocodile This is the first initiating 
and sharing. catchment stage of implementing 

an IWQMF 

Pro-Active acid mine Pro-active acid mine 0 100% The final and signed I None I None 
drainage strategy drainage strategy in report of the project was 

place finalized in the first 
quarter 



Performance 
Indicator 

Baseline I Annual 
Tar�et 

Annual Reason for 
Performance I Variance 

Remedial 
Action 

IUCMA Strategic Objective 1: Ensure Effective, Efficient and Sustainable Management of Water 

CMS Strate�ic Action Pro ramme 5: Achievin Compliance and Enforcement 
Number of water 145 145 200 A number of follow up I None 
quality inspections inspections apart from 
reports the scheduled 

inspections for the 
year were conducted 
to ensure that 
corrective action was 
taken to remedy the 
effects of pollution. 

Percentage of notices 100% 100% 100% of 29 required None I None 
issued to non-compliant notices were issued 
users. 

Percentage of directives 100% 100% 100% of 31 required I None I None 
issued to non -compliant notices were issued 
users 



Performance 
Indicator 

Baseline I Annual 
TarS!et 

Annual I Reason for 
Performance Variance 

Remedial 
Action 

IUCMA Strategic Objective 2: Ensure collaborative and co-ordinated IWRM for wise socio-economic 
development 

CMS Strategic Action Programme 1: Achieving Equity 

Number of stakeholder 116 
empowerment 
workshops conducted 
with HDI users 

Number of stakeholder I 20

interactions / 
consultations held and 

28 

48 

38 

36 

Demand driven by 
stakeholders. 

Scheduled forums 
including demand 
driven programmes 
from the 
stakeholders. 

None 

None 

IUCMA Strategic Objective 2: Ensure collaborative and co-ordinated IWRM for wise socio-economic 
development 

Strategic Action Programme 2: Water Availability and Flow Management 

Number of River Operating I 2 
Committees 

2 Sabie yet to 
commence. 

CMS Strategic Action Programme 4: Generating and Managing Knowledge 

Cooperative governance I Percentage of EIAs 
received reviewed within 
set timeframes 

Percentage of EM PRs & 
prospecting applications 
received reviewed within 
specified timeframes 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% of 9 EIA's I None 
received were 
evaluated within set 
time frames 

100% of 63 EMPs' I None 
received were 
evaluated within set 
time frames 

Will be implemented 
in 2015/16 financial 
year 

None 

None 



Performance Baseline Annual Annual Reason for 

Indicator Target Performance Variance 

Percentage of institutions 100% 100% 100% of o applications None 
in whose planning were received 
instruments inputs are 
made 

IUCMA Strategic Objective 3: Promote and Pursue International Developmental Agenda 

Strategic Action Programme 2: Water Availability and Flow Management 

Provision of advisory I Number of advisory inputs I 12 
services in respect of made 
international agreements 

12 12 None 

IUCMA Strategic Objective 4: Promote Knowledge Generation and Distribution 

Strategic Action Programme 3: Managing Water Quality 

Number of water quality 
status reports 
disseminated 

12 36 quarterly and 1 
annual status report 

30 quarterly and 1 
annual status report 

Due to delayed filling 
of posts 
(moratorium). The 
water quality 
monitoring report for 
Usuthu catchment 
only started in 
February 2015 and the 
water status report 
will only presented in 
the next catchment 
management forum 
meetings in the next 
ear. 

Remedial 

Action 

None 

None 

Positions orf the 
Usuthu atcbment 
have been filled. 



I' 

Performance 
Indicator 

Baseline I Annual 
Tare:et 

Annual I Reason for 
Performance Variance 

ic Orientated Goal 4: Protection of Freshwater ecosystems 

IUCMA Strategic Objective 3: Promote Knowledge Generation and Distribution 

CMS Strategic Action Programme 4: Generating and Managing Knowledge 

itrengthened IWRM 
k�rwledge sharing 
networks 

Number of IWRM-related I 10 
forums participated in 

Number of river data 
loggers maintained 

Number of installed 
functional rain gauges 
maintained 

28 

15 

10 29 

28 28 

16 16 

Demand driven. 

None 

None 

Remedial 
Action 

None 

New replacement 
instruments will be 
installed in the first 
quarter of 2015/16 

None 



/CORPORATE SERVICES 

Performance 
Indicator 

Baseline I Annual 
Tare:et 

Annual Reason for 
Performance I Variance 

ICMA Strategic Objective 5: Ensure Effective and Efficient Management of IUCMA Resources 

Effective internal 
controls 

Effective risk 
o 11 management

PFMA effectively 
complied with 

Percentage compliance to I 100% 

audit recommendations 

Number of risk assessment I 4
reports 

Number of Audit Strategies I 2 

developed 

Sound Financial services I Percentage compliance to I 100% 

financial reporting 

Employment Equity (EE) I Percentage compliance I 100% 

with EE plan submitted to 
Department of labour 

Effective IT management I Percentage compliance to I 100% 

MSP 

100% 

4 

2 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% of 14 internal 
control criteria as 
evaluated by 
external auditors 

4 

2 

100% 

100% 

100% compliance 

None 

None 

None 

100% 

None 

None 

Remedial 
Action 

None 

None 

None 

100% 

None 

None 



Annual tariff proposals I Number of tariff proposals 
developed and submitted 
to DWS pricing strategy 

Training and Skills 
I 

Percentage personnel 
Development trained according to WSP 

Percentage of internal 
bursaries awarded 

Effective organisational Percentage of vacant posts 
development filled 

Performance Percentage of alignment of 
management system signed performance 
effectively aligned to agreements to IUCMA APP 
approved APP 

Employee relations Percentage of grievances 
handled according to policy 

Percentage of disciplinary 
cases handled according to 
policy 

I 1 I 1 

15 All Staff 

5 6 

100% 100% 

100% 100% 

I 100% I 100% 

I 100% I 100% 

I 1 

47 staff trained 
according to the 
MSP plan 

7 bursaries 
were awarded 

82% ( 14 out of 17 
posts were filled) 

100% 

I 100% 

I 100% 

I None I None 

I None I None 

17 out of 15 applications I None 
received were rewarded 

I Moratorium from the 
Minister. 

I None I None 

I None I None 

I None I None 
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Statement of Responsibility for the Annual Financial Statements 

The accounting authority is responsible for monitoring the preparation and integrity of the financial statements and related 
information included in the annual report. In order for the accounting authority to discharge these responsibilities, as well as 
those bestowed on it in terms of the Public Finance Management Act and other applicable legislation, it has developed and 
maintained a system of internal controls. 

The internal controls include a risk-based system of internal accounting and administrative controls designed to provide 
reasonable but not absolute assurance that assets are safeguarded and that transactions are executed and recorded in 
accordance with generally accepted business practices and the Agency's policies and procedures. 

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the prescribed Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practices (GRAP). They are based on appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and 
prudent judgments and estimates. 

The accounting authority believes that the lnkomati Usuthu Catchment Management Agency will be a going concern in the year 
ahead due to the Government grant. For this reason the accounting authority continues to adopt the going concern basis in 
preparing the annual financial statements. 

The accounting authority �
.
pproved the annual financial statements for the 1ar ended 31 March 2015 set out on pages 7 to 21

on 27 May 2015 a
.��:,:h,ior

�r,� ..
signed on its behalf by: 

"� jl-
· M¼

l
. 

. ,J�..!� I o ___________ ··'!'_,�____ ; /
Ms TP Nyakane-Maluka Dr TK Gyedu-Ababio (Ex-Officio) 
Chairperson of the Governing Board Chief Executive Officer 

Place of signature: Mbombela 

31 May 2015 
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Audit Committee Report 

1. Introduction

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2015. 

1.1 Audit Committee Responsibility 

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from Regulation 27 .1.8 of the National 
Treasury Regulations, 2005 in executing its duties. The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal 
terms of reference within its Audit Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has 
discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein. 

2. The Effectiveness of Internal Control

Our review of the findings of the Internal Audit work, which was based on the risk assessments conducted by the lnkomati 
Usuthu Catchment Management Agency revealed certain weaknesses, which were then raised with the lnkomati Usuthu 
Catchment Management Agency. 

The following internal audit work was completed during the year under review to address the risks identified: 

- Developing the Internal Audit Plan and facilitating a Risk Assessment workshop;
- Financial Review in the 3rd quarter;
- Human Resource Management Review in the 3rd quarter:
- Performance Information review for the 1 st and 2nd quarters;
- Core Business Review in the 4th quarter; and
- Follow up Audit on previously reported findings.

The following were areas of concern: 

- Certain Performance objectives were not achieved in the current year due to challenges detailed in the divisional reports

No significant subsequent events to the year end were noted. 

3. In-Year Management and Monthly/Quarterly Report

The lnkomati Usuthu Catchment Management Agency has submitted monthly and quarterly reports to the Executive Authority. 

3.1 Evaluation of Financial Statements 

We have reviewed the Annual Financial Statements prepared by the lnkomati Usuthu Catchment Management Agency. 

4. Auditor's Report

We have reviewed the lnkomati Usuthu Catchment Management Agency's implementation plan for audit issues raised in the 
prior year and we are satisfied that the matters have been adequately resolved . 

.....,.rrrr: ...... , ommittee concurs and accepts the conclusions of the external auditor on the Annual Financial Statements and is of 
opinion at the Audited Annual Financial Statements be accepted and read together with the report of the External Auditor. 

Mr M Secker 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee 
lnkomati Usuthu Catchment Management Agency 
31 July 2015 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO PARLIAMENT ON THE 
INKOMATI-USUTHU CATCHMENT MANAGEMENT AGENCY 

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Introduction 

We have audited the financial statements of the Inkomati-Usuthu Catchment Management 
Agency set out on pages 7 to22, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 
31 March 2015, the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, 
cash flow statement and statement of comparison of budget information with actual amounts 
for the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 

Accounting Authority's responsibility for the financial statements 

The accounting authorit
y
, is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 

financial statements in accordance with the Standards of General Recognised Accounting 
Practices (GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South 
Africa, and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

r ....................................................................................... ...
..................................................................................... ........................................................ . 

Pricewatel'houseCoopers, 19 Brander Street, Mbombela 1200, PO Box 1875, Mbombela 1200 
T: +27(13) 754 3300, F: +27(13) 754 3400, www.pwc.co.za
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Inkomati-Usuthu Catchment Management Agency as at 31 March 2015 and its 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with GRAP and 
the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa. 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGUIATORY REQUIREMENTS 

In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) and the 
general notice issued in terms thereof, we have a responsibility to report findings on the 
reported performance information against predetermined objectives for the selected objectives 
presented in the annual report, non-compliance with legislation and internal control. We 
performed tests to identify reportable findings as described under each subheading below, but 
not to gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion or conclusion on these matters. 

Predetermined objectives 

We performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the 
reported performance information for the following selected objectives presented in the 
annual performance report of the Agency for the year ended 31 March 2015: 

• Objective 1: Ensure effective, efficient and sustainable management of water resources
as set out on pages 45 to 63.

• Objective 2: Ensure collaborative and co-ordination Integrated Water Resource
Management for wise socio-economic development as set out on pages 45 to 63.

• Objective 3: Promote and pursue the international developmental agenda as set out on
pages 45 to 63.

• Objective 4: Promote knowledge generation and distribution as set out on pages 45 to
63.

We evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness 
and reliability. 

We evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it 
was presented in accordance with the National Treasury's annual reporting principles and 
whether the reported performance was consistent with the planned objectives. We further 
performed tests to determine whether indicators and targets were well defined, verifiable, 
specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury's 
Framework for managing programme performance information (FMPPI). 

We assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it 
was valid, accurate and complete. 
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Usefulness and Reliability of reported performance iriformation 

We did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported 
performance information for the following objectives: 

• Objective 1: Ensure effective, efficient and sustainable management of water resources
as set out on pages 45 to 63.

• Objective 2: Ensure collaborative and co-ordination Integrated Water Resource
Management for wise socio-economic development as set out on pages 45 to 63.

• Objective 3: Promote and pursue the international developmental agenda as set out on
pages45 to 63.

• Objective 4: Promote knowledge generation and distribution as set out on pages45 to
63.

Additional matter 

Although we identified no material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported 
performance information for the selected objectives, we draw attention to the following 
matter: 

Achievement of planned targets 

Refer to the annual performance report on pages45 to 63 for information on the achievement 
of the planned targets for the year. 

Compliance with legislation 

We performed procedures to obtain evidence that the Agency had complied with legislation 
regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters. We did not 
identify any instances of material non-compliance with specific matters in key legislation, as 
set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA. 

Internal control 

We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that was considered sufficiently 
significant for inclusion in this report. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. 
Director: Andries Oosthuizen 
Registered auditor 
Nelspruit 
13 August 2015
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Accounting Authority's Report 

The Accounting Authority submits its report for the year ended 31 March 2015. 

1. Review of activities

Main business and operations 
The lnkomati Usuthu Catchment Management Agency (IUCMA) is a Schedule 3A Public Entity domiciled on the 8th Floor, 
Suite 801, The Maxsa Building, 13 Streak Street, Mbombela 1200, responsible for the integrated management of the water 
resource in the lnkomati and Usuthu Water Management Areas. The operating results and state of affairs of the Agency are 
fully set out in the attached financial statements and do not in our opinion require further comment. 
Net surplus of the Agency was R 5,452,068 (2014: deficit R 6,499,927).The Agency has deferred R6,400,000 (2014: 
R3,401,000) of the Government grants & subsidies to the next financial year to cover expenditure budgeted for the current 
financial year but only to be incurred in the next financial year where there is no provision made in that years budget for such 
carried over expenditure. 

2. Subsequent events
No significant subsequent events to the year end were noted.

3. Accounting Authority
The original members of the Governing Board of the lnkomati Catchment Managemet Agency served until the name change on
1 May 2014, and as from the 2 May 2014 they were all appointed as interim members of the Governing Board of the lnkomati
Usuthu Catchment Management Agency, in which they served until the 7 July 2014, and as from the 8 July 2014 a new
Governing Board was appointed by the Minister for the Agency. The members of the Agency during the year and to the date of 
this report were as follows:

Name 
Ms TP Nyakane-Maluka 
Mr MS Mthembu 
Or JB Molwantwa 
Dr PE Molokwane 
Ms SO Wiggins 
Mr PA Tshabangu 
Mr PJ Venter 
Mr JM Mathebula 
Dr TK Gyedu-Ababio (Ex-Officio) 
Mr CJH du Preez 
Ms EG Mashele 
Mr BK Mokoena 
Mr SE Thwala 
Mr F Roux 
Mr TG Mokoena 
Ms LS Masilela 

4. Audit Committee
Mr M Secker
Ms V Maholovela (appointed 19 November 2014)
Mr NL Mathebula (term ended 18 November 2014)
Mr MS Mthembu
Mr PA Tshabungu (appointed 8 July 2014)
Mr SE Thwala (term ended 7 July 2014)
Ms LS Masilela (term ended 7 July 2014)

Changes 

Appointed 08 July 2014 
Appointed 08 July 2014 
Appointed 08 July 2014 
Appointed 08 July 2014 
Appointed 08 July 2014 
Appointed 08 July 2014 
Appointed 08 July 2014 
Appointed 08 July 2014 
Term ended 07 July 2014 
Term ended 07 July 2014 
Term ended 07 July 2014 
Term ended 07 July 2014 
Term ended 07 July 2014 
Term ended 07 July 2014 
Term ended 07 July 2014 
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2015 

Assets 

Current Assets 

Receivables from exchange transactions 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Non-Current Assets 

Property, plant and equipment 

Deposits 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

Finance lease obligation 

Payables from exchange transactions 

Provisions 

Deferred Income 

Non-Current Liabilities 

Finance lease obligation 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 

Accumulated surplus 

Note(s) 

3 

4 

2 

5 

8 

6 

5 

2015 
R 

552,430 

21,580,260 

22,132,690 

2,915,250 

210,600 

3,125,850 

25,258,540 

209,375 

5,122,648 

915,261 

6,400,000 

12,647,284 

194,559 

12,841,843 

12,416,697 

12,416,697 

2014 
R 

219,171 

14,609,441 

14,828,612 

2,984,607 

195,900 

3,180,507 

18,009,119 

193,333 

6,374,790 

671,433 

3,401,000 

10,640,556 

403,933 

11,044,489 

6,964,630 

6,964,630 
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Statement of Financial Performance 
2015 2014 

Note(s) R R 

Revenue 9 54,116,905 32,273,864 

Other income 10 114,472 4,221,870 

Operating expenses (49,458,304) (43,464,737) 

Operating surplus (deficit) 4,773,073 (6,969,003) 

Investment revenue 13 734,241 513,469 

Finance costs 14 (55,246) (44,393) 

Surplus (deficit) for the year 5,452,068 (6,499,927) 
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
Accumulated Total net 

surplus assets 
R R 

Balance at 01 April 2013 13,464,557 13,464,557 
Changes in net assets 
Deficit for the year (6,499,927) (6,499,927) 

Total changes (6,499,927) (6,499,927) 

Balance at 01 April 2014 6,964,629 6,964,629 
Changes in net assets 
Surplus for the year 5,452,068 5,452,068 

Total changes 5,452,068 5,452,068 

Balance at 31 March 2015 12,416,697 12,416,697 
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Cash Flow Statement 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Receipts 

Grants 
Interest income 
Other receipts 

Payments 

Employee costs 
Suppliers 

Net cash flows from operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 

Net cash flows from investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Proceeds from finance leases 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Note(s) 

16 

2 
2 

4 

2015 
R 

54,116,905 
734,241 

114,472 

54,965,618 

(27,518,756) 
(18,774,616) 

(46,293,372) 

8,672,246 

2014 
R 

32,273,864 
513,469 

4,221,870 

37,009,203 

(24,969,282) 
(11,543,548) 

(36,512,830) 

496,373 

(1,452,849) (1,455,814) 
173,411 

(1,452,849) (1,282,403) 

(248,578) 

6,970,819 

14,609,441 

21,580,260 

57,621 

(728,409) 

15,337,850 

14,609,441 
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Budget on Cash Basis 

Approved Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Note 25 to the 
budget on comparable between final Annual 

basis budget and Financial 
actual Statements 

R R R R R 

Statement of Financial Performance 

Revenue 

Revenue from exchange 
transactions 

Other Income 114,472 114,472 

Interest received - investment 2,240,865 2,240,865 734,241 (1,506,624) 

Total revenue from exchange 2,240,865 2,240,865 848,713 (1,392,152) 
transactions 

Revenue from non-exchange 
transactions 

Taxation revenue 

Government grants & subsidies 53,175,031 53,175,031 54,116,905 941,874 

Total revenue 55,415,896 55,415,896 54,965,618 (450,278) 

Expenditure 

Personnel (32,169,774) (32,169,774) (27,762,584) 4,407,190 

Depreciation and amortisation (1,522,207) (1,522,207) 

Finance costs (57,286) (57,286) (55,246) 2,040 

Repairs and maintenance (885,390) (885,390) (209,929) 675,461 

General Expenses (21,432,792) (21,432,792) (19,963,584) 1,469,208 

Total expenditure (54,545,242) (54,545,242) (49,513,550) 5,031,692 

Surplus before taxation 870,654 870,654 5,452,068 4,581,414 

Actual Amount on Comparable 870,654 870,654 5,452,068 4,581,414 
Basis as Presented in the 
Budget and Actual 
Comparative Statement 
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts 
Budget on Cash Basis 

Approved Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Note 25 to the 
budget on comparable between final Annual 

basis budget and Financial 
actual Statements 

R R R R R 

Statement of Financial Performance 

Revenue 

Revenue from exchange 
transactions 

Other Income 114,472 114,472 

Interest received - investment 2,240,865 2,240,865 734,241 (1,506,624) 

Total revenue from exchange 2,240,865 2,240,865 848,713 (1,392,152) 
transactions 

Revenue from non-exchange 
transactions 

Taxation revenue 

Government grants & subsidies 53,175,031 53,175,031 54,116,905 941,874 

Total revenue 55,415,896 55,415,896 54,965,618 (450,278) 

Expenditure 

Personnel (32,169,774) (32,169,774) (27,762,584) 4,407,190 

Depreciation and amortisation (1,522,207) (1,522,207) 

Finance costs (57,286) (57,286) (55,246) 2,040 

Repairs and maintenance (885,390) (885,390) (209,929) 675,461 

General Expenses (21,432,792) (21,432,792) (19,963,584) 1,469,208 

Total expenditure (54,545,242) (54,545,242) (49,513,550) 5,031,692 

Surplus before taxation 870,654 870,654 5,452,068 4,581,414 

Actual Amount on Comparable 870,654 870,654 5,452,068 4,581,414 
Basis as Presented in the 
Budget and Actual 
Comparative Statement 
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Accounting Policies 

1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting 
Standards Board. 

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance 
with historical cost convention unless specified othe,wise. They are presented in South African Rand. 

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied, are disclosed below. 

1.1 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the 
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 
management. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. 

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The 
assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their 
estimated residual value. 

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows: 

Item 
Furniture and fixtures 
Motor vehicles 
Office equipment 
IT equipment 

1.2 Financial instruments 

Classification 

Average useful life 
5 years 
5 years 
5 years 
3 years 

The Agency classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories: 
• Financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit - designated
• Loans and receivables
• Financial liabilities at fair value through surplus or deficit - designated

Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained / incurred and takes place 
at initial recognition. Classification is re-assessed on an annual basis, except for derivatives and financial assets 
designated as at fair value through surplus or deficit, which shall not be classified out of the fair value through 
surplus or deficit category. 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the Agency becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instruments. 

The Agency classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a 
financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. 
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1.2 Financial instruments (continued) 

Receivables from exchange transactions 

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised 
in surplus or deficit when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the 
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in 
payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The 
allowance recognised is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. 

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the deficit 
is recognised in surplus or deficit within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off 
against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are 
credited against operating expenses in surplus or deficit. 

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables. 

Payables from exchange transactions 

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the 
effective interest rate method. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. These are initially and subsequently recorded at fair value. 

1.3 Leases 

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A 
lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership. 

Finance leases - lessee 

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the 
fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding 
liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. 

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The 
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate on the 
remaining balance of the liability. 

Operating leases - lessee 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

1.4 Employee benefits 

Defined contribution plans 

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. 
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1.5 Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions are recognised when: 
• the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to 

settle the obligation; and
• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present 
obligation at the reporting date. 

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are 
reversed if it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will 
be required, to settle the obligation. 

1.6 Revenue from exchange transactions 

Revenue comprises government grants, which are brought into account in the year in which the amounts are due. 

Interest, royalties and dividends 

Revenue arising from the use by others of Agency assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends or similar 
distributions is recognised when: 
• It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the

Agency.and
• The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method. 

1.7 Translation of foreign currencies 

Foreign currency transactions 

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in Rands, by applying to the foreign currency amount 
the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different 
from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous annual financial 
statements are recognised in surplus or deficit in the period in which they arise. 

1.8 Comparative figures 

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current 
year. 

1.9 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable 
care been exercised. 

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of 
financial performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with 
the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of 
financial performance. 
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2. Property, plant and equipment

2015 

Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ 
Valuation depreciation Valuation 

and 
accumulated 
impairment 

Furniture and fixtures 1,980,859 (1,056,400) 924,459 1,485,435 
Motor vehicles 1,079,262 (473,487) 605,775 586,610 
Office equipment 1,202,390 (617,189) 585,201 1,108,126 
Computer equipment 3,532,928 (2,733,113) 799,815 3,162,418 

Total 7,795,439 (4,880,189) 2,915,250 6,342,589 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2015 

2015 2014 
R R 

2014 

Accumulated Carrying value 
depreciation 

and 
accumulated 
impairment 

(804,019) 681,416 
(261,526) 325,084 
(347,278) 760,848 

(1,945,159) 1,217,259 

(3,357,982) 2,984,607 

Opening Additions Depreciation Total 

Furniture and fixtures 
Motor vehicles 
Office equipment 
Computer equipment 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2014 

Opening 
balance 

Furniture and fixtures 590,236 
Motor vehicles 365,511 
Office equipment 640,563 
Computer equipment 1,221,792 

2,818,102 

Assets subject to finance lease (Net carrying amount) 

Office equipment 

3. Receivables from exchange transactions

Prepayments 
Sundry debtors 

4. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of: 

balance 
681,416 
325,084 
760,848 

1,217,259 

2,984,607 

Additions 

277,339 
155,477 
341,646 
681,352 

1,455,814 

495,424 
492,651 

94,264 
370,510 

1,452,849 

Disposals 

(10,259) 
(85,863) 

(2,235) 
(17,220) 

(115,577) 

(252,381) 
(211,960) 
(269,911) 
(787,954) 

(1,522,206) 

Depreciation 

(175,900) 
(110,041) 
(219,126) 
(668,665) 

(1,173,732) 

381,473 

519,856 
32,574 

552,430 

924,459 
605,775 
585,201 
799,815 

2,915,250 

Total 

681,416 
325,084 
760,848 

1,217,259 

2,984,607 

585,733 

175,826 
43,345 

219,171 
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5. Finance lease obligation

Minimum lease payments due 
- within one year
- in second to fifth year inclusive

less: future finance charges 

Present value of minimum lease payments 

Present value of minimum lease payments due 
- within one year
- in second to fifth year inclusive

Non-current liabilities 
Current liabilities 

It is Agency policy to lease certain office equipment under finance leases. 

2015 2014 
R R 

234,115 234,115 
202,399 436,514 

436,514 670,629 
(32,580) (73,363) 

403,934 597,266 

209,375 193,333 
194,559 403,933 

403,934 597,266 

194,559 403,933 
209,375 193,333 

403,934 597,266 

The average lease term is 3 years and the average effective borrowing rate was 8% (2014: 8%). There are no options for 
renewal and ownership remains with the lessor. 

Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases have fixed repayments and no arrangements have been entered into 
for contingent rent. 

The Agency's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's charge over the leased assets. Refer note 2. 

6. Provisions

Reconciliation of provisions - 2015 

Opening Additions Total 
Balance 

Leave pay provision 671,433 243,828 915,261 

Reconciliation of provisions - 2014 

Opening Additions Total 
Balance 

Leave pay provision 509,918 161,515 671,433 

This provision is created based on staff leave days outstanding at year end which might have to be paid out to them if they 
are to leave the Agency. The leave pay provision was calculated based on the basic salary for each individual and the leave 
days not taken at year end for each individual employee. 

7. Current tax payable (receivable)

No provision for income tax is made as the Agency is exempt from payment thereof in terms of section 10(1)(cA)(i)of the 
Income Tax Act 
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8. Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables 
Sundry payables 
Accruals 

9. Revenue

Government grants & subsidies 

10. Other income

DWS Regional Office Claims 
Profit on disposal of assets 
Dam safety inspections and fees for tender documents 

11. General expenses

Advertising and Marketing 
External Auditors remuneration 
Computer expenses 
Consulting and professional fees 
Consumables 
Insurance 
Lease rentals on operating lease 
Legal fees 
Motor vehicle expenses 
Printing and stationery 
Subscriptions and membership fees 
Telephone and fax 
Training 
Travel - local 
Electricity 
Laboratory testing 
Maintenance equipment 
Venue expenses 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 

12. Employee related costs

Basic 
WCA 
Leave pay provision charge 
Company Contributions 
Overtime payments 
Car allowance 

2015 2014 
R R 

2,037,058 
2,389,224 

696,366 

5,122,648 

54,116,905 

114,472 

114,472 

1,248,203 
154,333 

1,251,231 
6,770,918 

164,261 
151,099 

3,661,453 
154,981 
147,192 
489,863 
167,857 
561,977 
787,857 

2,299,471 
425,447 
930,088 
209,929 
599,561 

1,522,206 

21,850,700 

21,643,034 
43,585 

309,821 
3,760,849 

599 
2,004,696 

27,762,584 

2,692,076 
2,055,281 
1,627,433 

6,374,790 

32,273,864 

4,164,036 
57,834 

4,221,870 

1,137,833 
145,600 
465,513 

6,089,289 
67,600 

160,743 
3,640,197 

138,193 
184,271 
280,243 

54,891 
538,835 
427,020 

1,548,594 
412,225 
601,522 
471,257 
764,034 

1,173,732 

18,472,132 

19,417,200 
105,215 
265,031 

3,656,202 

1,687,149 

25,130,797 
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13. Investment revenue

Interest revenue 
Bank 

14. Finance costs

Finance leases 

15. Auditors' remuneration

Fees 

16. Cash generated from operations

Surplus (Deficit) for the year 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Finance costs - Finance leases 
Movements in provisions 
Movement in deferred income 
Profit on sale of assets and liabilities 
Changes in working capital: 
Receivables from exchange transactions 
Prepayments 
Payables from exchange transactions 

17. Commitments

Operating leases - as lessee (expense) 

Minimum lease payments due 
- within one year
- in second to fifth year inclusive

2015 2014 
R R 

734,241 

55,246 

154,333 

5,452,068 

1,522,207 
55,246 

243,828 
2,999,000 

(333,259) 
(14,700) 

(1,252,144) 

8,672,246 

3,676,244 
2,343,030 

6,019,274 

513,469 

44,393 

145,600 

(6,499,927) 

1,173,732 
44,393 

161,515 
3,401,000 

(57,834) 

220,722 

2,052,772 

496,373 

3,542,030 
5,842,003 

9,384,033 

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Agency for its office properties. Leases are negotiated for an 
average term of five years. No contingent rent is payable. 

18. Contingencies

The litigation against the Agency reported in the prior years Annual Financial Statements has ended with Northern Coal 
(Pty) Ltd, the Applicant, withdrawing their application in the High Court to interdict the former lnkomati Catchment 
Management Agency, now lnkomati Usuthu Catchment Management Agency, not to provide information about the 
Applicant held by the Agency and rendered costs at party and party scale of legal fees. There are no contingencies to 
disclose for the current financial year. 
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2015 2014 

R R 

19. Members' and prescribed officer's emoluments

Executive 

2015 

Committees Total 
fees 

Ms TP Nyakane-Maluka 210,268 210,268 
Mr MS Mthembu 77,420 77,420 
Dr JB Molwantwa 41,216 41,216 
Dr PE Molokwane 60,928 60,928 
Ms SD Wiggins 48,384 48,384 
Mr PA Tshabangu 51,968 51,968 
Mr PJ Venter 76,544 76,544 

Mr JM Mathebula 50,176 50,176 
Mr CJH du Preez 36,282 36,282 
Ms EG Mashele 33,862 33,862 
Mr BK Mokoena 41,387 41,387 

Mr SE Thwala 45,150 45,150 

Mr F Roux 18,813 18,813 

Mr TG Mokoena 41,387 41,387 

Ms LS Masilela 18,813 18,813 

852,598 852,598 

2014 

Committees Total 

fees 

Ms TP Nyakane-Maluka 223,600 223,600 

Mr CJH du Preez 112,875 112,875 

Ms EG Mashele 97,825 97,825 

Mr BK Mokoena 105,350 105,350 

Mr SE Thwala 71,487 71,487 

Mr F Roux 101,588 101,588 

Mr TG Mokoena 105,350 105,350 

Ms LS Masilela 67,725 67,725 

885,800 885,800 

Audit Committee 

2015 

Committees Total 
fees 

Mr M Secker 38,562 38,562 

Ms V Maholovela 7,616 7,616 

Mr NL Mathebula 18,210 18,210 

Mr MS Mthembu 42,276 42,276 

Mr PA Tshabangu 16,128 16,128 

Mr SE Thwala 7,525 7,525 

Ms LS Masilela 15,050 15,050 

145,367 145,367 
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19. Members' and prescribed officer's emoluments (continued)

2014 

Mr M Secker 
Mr NL Mathebula 
Mr MS Mthembu 
Mr SE Thwala 
Ms LS Masilela 

Management 

2015 

Chief Operating Officer (Acting Chief Executive Officer) 
Executive Corporate Services (Chief Financial Officer) 

2014 

Chief Operating Officer (Acting Chief Executive Officer) 
Executive Corporate Services (Chief Financial Officer) 

* Other benefits comprise travel allowance

20. Comparative figures

No comparative figures have been reclassified. 

21. Risk management

Liquidity risk 

Emoluments 

1,431,601 
1,028,194 

2,459,795 

Emoluments 

1,314,325 
766,459 

2,080,784 

2015 2014 
R R 

Committees 
fees 

25,311 
25,311 
48,105 
22,575 
30,100 

151,402 

Other 
benefits* 

96,920 
78,396 

175,316 

Other 
benefits* 

65,330 
65,330 

130,660 

Total 

25,311 
25,311 
48,105 
22,575 
30,100 

151,402 

Total 

1,528,521 
1,106,590 

2,635,111 

Total 

1,379,655 
831,789 

2,211,444 

The Agency's risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The Agency manages liquidity 
risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities. 

Credit risk 

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. The Agency only deposits cash with major 
banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party. 

Market risk 

Interest rate risk 



INKOMATI-USUTHU Annual Report 2014/2015 

lnkomati Usuthu Catchment Management Agency 
Formerly lnkomati Catchment Management Agency 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 

22. Going concern

2015 2014 
R R 

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This 
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of 
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 

23. Events after the reporting date

There are no events to report after the reporting date. 

24. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

This arose as a result of a premicell contract that was paid for but the service never rendered due to the equipment not 
being reinstalled after the installation of a new switchboard. 

25. Budget differences

Material differences between budget and actual amounts 

72,942 

The budget was based on assumptions that the full budget allocation would be transferred at the beginning of the financial 
year thereby allowing sufficient time for cash flows to occur as planned and interest to be accumulated accordingly. The 
Department of Water and Sanitation implemented a quarterly invoice system during the year whereby funds were transfered 
on a quarter by quarter basis resulting in delays and unearned planned interest income. This therefore created timing 
differences mainly due to delays in recruitment of staff as per the organogram and the implementation of major projects. 
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